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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its loss including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended / Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended / Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

V.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.23 to the Ind AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Mied£,

per Navneet Rai Kabra '

Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVSM4791

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited (’the Company')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

a)

b)

b)

b)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

c)

d)

a)

b)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(ix)

69

(xi)

(xii)

a)

b)

b)

b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requiremerit to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is
not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year; however it has incurred
a cash loss amounting to Rs 19.01 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.35 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Namd—éa‘fr’\

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVSM4791
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Kumool Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing arid evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

NRVML lo (—

per Navneet Rai Kabrd
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVSM4791
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

Note As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Plant, property and equipment 2.1 (a) 417.25 436.21
Intangible assets 2.1() 529 4.78
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 2.2 (a) 3.25 3.18
Non-current tax assets (net) 2.7 26.40 12.64
Other non-current assets 2.3 33.69 9.20
Total non-current assets 485.88 466.01
Current assets
Inventories 24 15.28 11.96
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 25 51.79 48.75
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 2.6 (a) 19.34 1.53
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 2.6 (b) 8.70 -
(iii) Other financial assets 2.2 (b) 9.26 7.27
Other current assets 2.8 4.07 3.68
Total current assets 108.44 73.19
Total assets 594.32 539.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 2.9 (a) 60.00 60.00
Other equity 2.9 (b) (237.92) (226.90)
Total equity (177.92) (166.90)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 2.10 629.54 51177
(ii) Other financial liabilitics 2.11 (a) 0.98 2.30
Provisions 2.12 2.30 0.65
Total non-current liabilitics 632.82 514.72
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 2.10 37.29 92.22
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro cnterprises and small enterprises; and 2.13 6.37 0.86
(b) Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises 213 69.18 81.41
and small enterprises
(iti) Other financial liabilities 2.11 (b) 12.88 8.03
Provisions 2.14 5.03 3.36
Other current liabilities 2.15 8.69 5.50
Total current liabilities 139.44 191.38
Total equity and liabilities 594.32 539.20
Significant accounting policies 13

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date.

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

for S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

me{- ko't

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

[\ D

Dr Rafig-Ahmied K
Managing Director
DIN: 07932674

DI:01681273

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad /

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022 Date: 17 May 202

Date: 17 May 2022




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: US5110AP2012PTC083865

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended  For the year ended

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue
Revenue from operations 2.16 646.06 520.59
Other income 2.17 6.89 3.87
Total Revenue 652.95 524.46
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
S RImeris 151.17 121.89
Increase in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and 218 (3.32) (2.13)
surgical instruments :
Employee benefits expense 2.19 142.22 108.95
Finance costs 2.20 60.62 57.87
Depreciation and amortisation expense 221 3391 32.76
Other expenses 222 301.37 256.90
Total expenses 685.97 576.24
Loss before tax expense (33.02) (51.78)

Tax expense

- Deferred tax expense 231 0.09 0.01
Total tax expense 0.09 0.01
Loss for the year (A) (33.11) (51.79)
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans 0.32) (0.05)
- Income tax effect 0.09 0.01
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B) (0.23) (0.04)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (A+B) (33.34) (51.83)
Earmning per share (face value of share INR 10 each) 2.26
- Basic (5.52) (8.63)

- Diluted (5.52) (8.63)
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date.
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004 CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865
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per Navneet Rai Kabra Dr Rafig Ahmed K inay
Partoer Managing Director Director

Membership no.: 102328 DIN: 07932674 D 70}.681273

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Place: Hyderabad »
Date: 17 May 2022 -

Date: 17 May 2022 Date: 17 May 2022




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No of shares Amount
At 1 April 2020 6,000,000 60.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2021 6,000,000 60.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 6,000,000 60.00
b) Other Equity

Particulars Other equity Total of Other equity

Reserve and surplus
Retained earnings Capital
contribution

Balance as at 1 April 2020 (187.60) 12.53 (175.07)
Loss for the year (51.79) - (51.79)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax) (0.04) - (0.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (239.43) 12.53 (226.90)
Loss for the year (33.11) - (33.11)
Guarantee commission - 22.32 22.32
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax) (0.23) - (0.23)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 (272.77) 34.85 (237.92)

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date.

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004

MdW\uJL K&'(

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner
Membership no.: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Q.-

Abhinay

Dr Rafig Ahmed K
Managing Director rector
DIN: 07932674 DIN:01681273

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022 —-.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022




KIMS Hospltal Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

L. Cash flows from operating activities:

Loss before tax (33.02) (51.78)
Adjustments for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3391 32.76
Trade receivables written off 3.35 230
Expected credit loss for trade receivable 6.49 5.04
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - (0.01)
Rental income (0.90) (0.79)
Liabilitics no longer required written back (4.78) -
Interest income on fixed deposits (0.23) 0.12)
Interest on income tax refund (0.44) (0.15)
Finance costs 60.62 57.87
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 65.00 45.12
Adjustments for;
Increase in trade receivables (12.88) (34.84)
Increase in inventories (3.32) (2.13)
Increase in loans and other assets (2.49) (4.34)
Increase in liabilities and provisions 11.78 16.47
Cash generated from operations 58.09 20.28
Income-taxes paid, net of refund (14.20) (5.83)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 43.89 14.45
1II. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (29.05) (47.86)
Procecds from sale of fixed assets - 0.11
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (20.02) -
Redemption of bank deposits (having maturity of more than three months) 11.21 -
Rental income 0.90 0.79
Interest received 0.12 0.11
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (36.84) (46.85)
III. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (422.63) (35.20)
Receipts from long-term borrowings 590.00 122.50
Repayment of loan taken from related party (578.35) (76.90)
Receipts from loan taken from related party 502.75 105.00
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net) (28.93) (23.49)
Finance costs (52.08) (58.45)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C) 10.76 33.46
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 17.81 1.06
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.53 0.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19.34 1.53
* this includes loan taken and repaid during the year from Holding Company of Rs. 128.58
Note:
a) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind 7)-Statement of cash flows:
b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 0.72 0.81
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 18.62 0.72
Total 19.34 1.53

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date.

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limfted

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

(s

-
Dr Katig Ahmed K

for S.R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101049W/ E300004
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per Navneet Rai Kabra

Partner Managing Director

Membership no.: 102328 DIN: 07932674 DIN:0J 681273

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad /7
Date: 17 May 2022 Date: 17 May 2{]21}'I o

Date: 17 May 2022




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Company Overview
KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited ('the Company') is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated on 29 October 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in India. The registered

office of the Company is located at P.No: 27 & 28 Sy No 931/J1&2B, Joharapuram Road, Kurnool, Andhra
Pradesh - 518002.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17 May 2022.
1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under

section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and

per share data, unless otherwise stated.
d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.24 - Measurement

of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining
maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
%, /and-the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 2

"




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)
e¢)  Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current
classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

il it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii.  itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A llab111ty is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting date.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

1] Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market partlclpants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis,
the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and
the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the

valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in Note 2.30 — financial instruments.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.3  Significant accounting policies
A. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services
and sale of phariacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical
professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for
components of variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other
rights and obligations as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected
from customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the
point in time for the outpatient hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction
price. With respect to the inpatients hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the
balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy (other than hospital services), where the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value miethod to estimate the variable
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value methcd-is used for
those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining
estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction

price and recognised as revenue.

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet

date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss.

B. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except
to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates

taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

D
A
RED |\
nTs ) o
o

._*."]*



KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

C. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs, if the
recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which

it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended use,
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life
and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon sale
or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended
use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by
the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
o Leaschold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not

amortised.
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KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers
the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and
estimated residual values.

D. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part

of carrying value of another asset.

De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. wheu the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:
Category of Assets Useful life (In years)

Software 6

E. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing

costs.

e —




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

F. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of

the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-

financial assets.
ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate arz
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a channe

in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

iif) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.€., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

G. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by

item basis.
H. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

I. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial

statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
J. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary

using the projected unit credit method.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income

(OCD.

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined
benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment

or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit

and loss.
Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash
bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave
during the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences
at the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of

the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The
Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee

renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the Statement of Profits and Losses and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

K. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit

or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
= Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets

are not derecognised.
Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue

receivables’ in these financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default

events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at

the original EIR.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

M. Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

N. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Managing Director is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

O. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise,
events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2.2 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)

(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties

Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date*) 0.10 0.10
Interest receivable 0.11 0.01
Security deposits 3.04 3.07
Total 3.25 3.18

* The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer note 2.32) 7.26 5.27
Security deposits 2.00 2.00
Total 9.26 7.27
2.3 Other non-current assets
-To parties other than related parties
(unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 13.65 1.55
Prepaid expenses 0.70 0.06
Total 14.35 1.61
=To related parties
(unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid guarantee commission 19.34 7.59
Total 19.34 7.59
Total 33.69 9.20
2.4 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drug and surgical instruments 15.28 11.96
15.28 11.96

Total




SL'8Y

—_——

(€8°9)
85°LS

-t
1834 a1) Jo pua a1 JE 2 EL
mmo_:vouuvogoonxouomooﬁié.« “mm_uw_n

Lo i)

8S°LS

00°'1

¥9'€

6T°9

6Lvb

- paniedun 31par>-sajqeatadal spel] pajndsiq (1a) o' g
- sU ypai
U1 35B230UT JUBDLIUT(S-S2[qeAIS00] aper], payndsiq] (4)
= POO3 PaIapIsST0o-53[qeAI®02I dpRI], Pamdsiqg (a1)
- Ppanedur J1paIo-53]qeAIa9a1 SpeRI]. pandsipup) (i)

ASHIpatd ux
25821001 JUBSHTUTIS-SO]qeAIS001 aper], pajndsipup) ()

681 POOS PAIaPISU0I-53|qBAIDIDI OpRI], payndsipup) (1)

1ejor

SIEIA £ UBY) dIOTA]

$1B3A €-7

sIBak T-1

J8aA - SyjuowW g

SYYUOW § U] §53]

juawded Jo :ep anp wioy sportad Suimo|ioy 10f Supuelsing

anp

JON Jnq Judiiny) stEmaned

6L1S

(ze'sn

1LY

TT0T YPIEJY T€ U0 S8 Anpayds Suose Sa[qeAladay) ape]

a4 913 Jo pua 3y J& IduE[RY
$S0[ 31paId pajoadxs 107 soueMOTY 55977
®oL

T1°L9

¥T'0

17°L

£0°6

20'7C

- parediinl 11pala-53|qeAIaI0I ope ], pain dsig (1a)
HsUrpan

W asearoul juesgIudis-sajqeat0a apeiy, papndsiq (A)
- PO0T PaISPISUOO-SI]qRAID31 SPRIL. pamdsicy (A1)
- partedur yipaso-safqeatosal apel], payndsipur) ()
JSHIIpaId up

ASEAIOUI JURON TUBIS-SI[qeAIR03I SpRI], pajudsipury ()

79'8C POOS Pa19pISUCD-Sa[qBATa0a1 opRI], paindsipun (1)

[L2LA )

s1uad £ uey) 2I0p

SABIA £-7

SIBIA T-1

AB3A [- Sypuow g

Sjuem 9 UBIL ssay

juawrdud o 2)8p anp woiy sporzad Buisofjoy Jo] Supumsing

anp

JON Inq Jud.1an)) sle[nayaey

saruredwros syeand to swry woy snp are 31qeALadal 120 10 9pex ATe J0U ‘mostad JomI0 AUB Gim Apurof 10 Aj[etanss 10q)1s Aueduop o

SL'8y 6L'1S

SL'8Y 6L'TS
(€88) (zesn

86°LS 1129
120T 21BN 1€ CU0T PIBI T€
je sy je sy

TTOT YRR TE U0 S8 INPAYIS JUIITE 5|qRAIIIIY IPEIL

*SABp (6 01 O JO sUHIY) UO A[jeronsd Pue 3uLreaq JSaU2)UI-UOU AIE SS|GRAISSI apeij,

“13qTUaw B 10 10)0311p € ‘1oujred ® ST 10)9211p AUE YoIgm ur KjpAnoadsar
30 S190J0 ISTI0 10 SI0IOAIIP WOY INP T8 J[BAII0ST 1IT}0 10 apen oN
$T'T 930U 5521 soyred poje[o WO S[qBAIS0AI JUNOIR sapnjour,,

1e10],
justairediuy JIpaIo 10§ SOUBMO[[Y S5
PAINoasuy) - parredu JIpald - §3]qRAI9951 spely,

S50] JIPaI0 pajoadxs 10J SOUBMO[[Y iS5
»Pamoasuy) - pood paopisuo)

(pamaasup))

(350> pasy.rome J8) $3[qEAIAT PRI, 14

PRYES SIMIS0 Ssa[um 1o eyep areys 1dooxa ssadny UBIpU] JO UOK[IW Ul 21 SjuNOUE nv
TT0T 28T T€ PAPU2 A4 51 J0J SJULTI2J6)S [BIUEUL} 3Y) 0} SAJON]
S98E80DLATTOTAVOTISSN :NID

P d3BALIg [oowsny] [ENdsOH SIATSL




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.6 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.72 0.81
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 18.62 0.72
Total 19.34 1.53
b) Bank balances other than (a) above
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months 8.70 -
8.70 -
Total 28.04 1.53

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three
months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows 31 March 2022

Short term borrowings 2893 (28.93) -

Long term borrowings 575.06 167.37 666.83

Total liabilities from fi ing activities 603.99 138.44 666.83

Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash flows 31 March 2021

Shert term borrowings 5242 (23.49) 28.93

Long term bomowings 459.66 87.30 575.06

Total liabilities from financing activitics 512.08 63.81 603.99
2.7 Tax assets (net)

Non-current

Advance tax (net of provision for taxation) 26.40 12.64

Total 26.40 12.64
2.8 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers 0.54 0.98

Prepaid expenses 1.00 0.84

Staff advances 0.30 0.13

Prepaid guarantee commission 2.23 1.73

4.07 3.68

Total




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.9 (a)

As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares
6,000,000 (31 March 2021: 6,000,000) cquity shares of INR 10 each 60.00 60.00
60.00 60.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
6,000,000 (31 March 2021: 6,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 60.00 60.00
60.00 60.00
a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares of INR 10 each,fully pald up ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year 6,000,000 60.00 6,000,600 60.00
Add : Shares issued during the year - - < =
Shares ding at the end of the year 6,000,000 60.00 6,000,000 60.00

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held.In the event of liquidation of the
company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, afler distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion fo

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

¢) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares %o of Holding
Krishna Institute ¢f Medical Sciences Limited 3,300,000 55.00% 3,300,000 55.00%
Dr P Govardhan Reddy 496,000 5.27% 496,000 8.27%
Dr G Sudhakar 495,000 8.25% 495,000 B.25%
Dr H Abdul Naveed 495,000 B.25% 495,000 B.25%

d) Shares of the Company held by holding company

Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Krishna Institte of Medical Seiences Limited 3,300,000 55.00% 3,300,000 55.00%

€) The Company has not issued bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.
0) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting period.

g) Details of shares held by Promoters*
As at 31 March 2022

No of shares at

. . :
S. No. Particulars Promoter name beginning of the Chengeiduring] PNolofishareiTat % of total shares a4 ch:nge during
Wi the year end of the year the year
. . Krishna Institute of o o
1 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Medical Sciences Limited 3,300,000 - 3,300,000.00 55.00% 0.00%
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid P Govardhan Reddy 496,000 - 496,000.00 8.27% 0.00%
3 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid G Sudhakar 495,000 - 495,000.00 8.25% 0.00%
4 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid H Abdul naveed 495,000 - 495,000.00 8.25% 0.00%
5 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid K Raefiq ahmed 270,000 - 270,000.00 4.50% 0.00%
6 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid A Venkata Setty 270,000 - 270,000.00 4.50% 0.00%
7 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid A Srevalli 270,000 - 270,000.00 4.50% 0.00%
8 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid M Zareena 269,000 - 269,000.00 4.48% 0.00%
9 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid K Lakshmi Prasana 45,000 - 45,000.00 0.75% 0.00%
10 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid M Shabana 45,000 - 45,000.00 0.75% 0.00%
11 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid G Sharada 45,000 - 45,000.00 0.75% 0.00%
Total 6,000,000 - 6,000,000.00 100% -
As at 31 March 2021
No of shares at .
. Change during No of shares at % change during
S. Neo. Particulars Promoter name begmml:gr of the the year end of the year % of total shares the year
-
Krishna Institute of
i i - 00,000 55.00% 0.009
1 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Medical Sciences Limited 3,300,000 3,300,0 Q o
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid P Govardhan Reddy 496,000 - 496,000 8.27% 0.00%
3 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid G Sudhakar 495,000 - 495,000 8.25% 0.00%
4 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid H Abdul naveed 495,000 - 495,000 8.25% 0.00%
5 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid K Rafiq ahmed 270,000 - 270,000 4.50% 0.00%
6 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid A Venkata Setty 270,000 - 270,000 4.50% 0.00%
i Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid A Srevalli 270,000 - 270,000 4.50% 0.00%
8 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid M Zarcena 269,000 - 269,000 4.48% 0.00%
9 Equity shares of Rs, 10 cach fullypaid K Takshmi Prasana 45,000 . 45,000 0.75% 0,009
0 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid M Shabana 45,000 - 45,000 0.75% 0.00%
b Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid G Sharada 45,000 - 45,000 0.75% 0.00%
SON
Tnfl,l’ A \ 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 100% :

are as per the annual retumn filed by the Company.



KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

29() Other equity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(A) Capital contribution (Refer Note (f) below)

Opening balance 12,53 12,53
Movement during the year 22.32 =
Closing balance 34.85 12.53

(B) Retalned earnings (Refer Note (1) below)

Opening balance (239.43) (187.60)

Add: Loss for the year (33.11) (51.79)

Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.23) (0.04)

Closing balance 27277 (23943
(237.92) (226.90)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(D) Capital contribution

Fi inl g are isedas a fi ial liability at the time of issuc of guarantee. The liability is measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount

determined in sccordance with Ind AS 37 and the initinlly recognised less lative amoriisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantee in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no
contribution in the books of the Company,

by the shareholder, fair values of such guarantees are accounted as capital

P

(i) Retained earnlngs

Retnined earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has eamed/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributi paid to
eamings includes re-measurement Joss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained eamnings is a free reserve
available to the Company and eligible for distribution to sharcholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date.

harehald Retained
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.10

(=)

®

Notes:

Borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings

Secured

Term loans from bank

- HDFC Bank (refer note i) 629.54 436.17

Total loans from bank 629.54 436.17

Unsecured

Loans from related parties (refer note ii) - 75.60

Total unsecured loans - 75.60

Total 629.54 511,77

Current borrowings

Secured

Working capital loans from banks (refer note iii) - 28.93

Current maturity of long term borrowings

- HDFC Bank (refer note i) 37.29 63.29
37.29 92,22

i) Term loan - 1 from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos. 27 & 28 (part) in
Sy.No.931/T1B 931/12B,931/15B,931/K1B and 931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kumool and first and exclusive first charge on movable
and immovable assets and current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute
of Medical Sciences Limited. The loan consists of different facilities wherein repayments term ranges between 60 to 104 months and the last
instalment in the said facilities is due in April 2028. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per annum (31 March
2021 : 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per annum). The loan was preclosed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Fresh loan taken during the year ended 31 March 2021 from HDFC Bank has repayment term of 48 months and the last instalment in the said
facilities is due in July 2025. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 0.50% (spread) per annum (31 March 2021 : 1Y MCLR+
0.50%).The loan is secured by way of extension of Second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities including
Mortagages created in favour of HDFC Bank.

Fresh Term Loan taken during the year from HDFC Bank has a repayment term of 120 months and the last instalment in the said facility due
in December 2031, The loan carries an interest rate of 6% (floating rate linked to 3 months T-Bill) per annum (31 March 2021 : Nil). The
same is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos. 27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J1B
931/J2B,931/15B,931/K1B and 931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kurnool and first and exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assets of
the Company (both present and future) and current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited.

if) The Company has taken unsecured loan from the parent Company M/s Krishna Institute Of Medical Sciences Limited which carries
interest ranging from 8.5% to 12% per annum ( 31 March 2021 : 12% per annum). The loan was repaid during the year ended 31 March

2022. Refer note 2.25 for the related party balances.

iif) Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage on the property situated at Plot Nos. 27 & 28 (part) in Sy.No.931/J1B
931/J2B,931/15B,931/K1B and 931/K3 of kallur,Johrapuram Road,Kurnool and first and exclusive first charge on movable and immovable
assets and current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited. The loan carries an interest rate of 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread) per annum (31 March 2021 : 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% (spread)

per annum).
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CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2.11 Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

(a) Non Current

Capital creditors 0,98 230
Total 0.98 2.30
(b) Current
Capital creditors 1.32 1.49
Employee related liabilities 8.09 1.38
Security deposits 0.12 0.02
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 335 5.14
Total 12.88 8.03
2.12 Long-term provislons
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note. 2.24) 2.30 0.65
Total 2.30 0.65
2.13 Trade payables (at amortised cost)
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 2.28) 6.37 0.86
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 69.18 81.41
Total 75.55 82.27
The above includes payable to related parties. For details refer note 2.25.
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2022
Particulars Current but No Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro 0.17 6.21 - - - 6.37
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other|
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
7.39 55.38 0.12 - - 62.89
(iif) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises = = = - & -
(iv) Disputed ducs of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterpriscs = . . . . .
Total 69.27
Accrued expenses 6.28
Total 75.55
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2021
Particulars Current but No Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment Total
due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro - 0.86 = - - 0.86
lenterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other| 15.15 50.21 1.22 0.09 - 66.67
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro enterpriscs and - = - = = =
small enterprises
(iv) Disputed ducs of creditors other than - - - - - -
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 67.53
Accrued expenses 14.74
Total 82.27
2.14 Short term previsions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 5.03 3.36
Total 5.03 3.36
2.15 Other liabilities
Current
3.58 3.07
5.11 243 -

8.69 550’
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.16 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contract with customers (Refer note 2.32)
Income from hospital services 385.82 362.64
Income from sale of pharmacy 260.24 157.95
Total Revenue from operations 646.06 520.59
2.17 Other income
Interest income on:
- fixed deposits 0.23 0.12
- income-tax refunds 0.44 0.15
Rental income 0.90 0.79
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.01
Liabilities no longer required written back 4.78 -
Miscellaneous income 0.54 2.80

Total 6.89 3.87
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Increase [n inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
instruments
Opening stock 11.96 9.83
Less: Closing stock (15.28) (11.96)
Total (3.32) (2.13)
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 128.89 98.70
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.24) 9.54 8.56
Staff welfare expenses 3.79 1.69
Total 142.22 108.95
Finance cost
Interest expense on
- term loans 28.43 40.35
- other loans 1.85 2.76
- Loan from related parties 20.25 8.88
Guarantee commission expense 10.07 1.73
Others 0.02 4.15
Total 60.62 57.87
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 2.1(a)) 32.68 31.71
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 2.1(b)) 1.23 1.05
Total 33.91 32.76
Other expenses
Consultancy charges 185.49 154.91
House keeping expenses 35.48 32.52
Power and fuel 18.59 16.88
Catering and patient welfare expenses 6.94 4.85
Rent (refer note 2.34) 4.65 4.75
Tests and investigations 2.99 2.55
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical /Non medical equipment 4.54 3.50
- Hospital building and others 9.25 6.90
Printing and stationery 3.50 2.60
Audit fee (refer note A below) 0.70 0.60
Legal and professional charges 2.62 1.82
Rates and taxes 1.21 1.30
Travelling and conveyance 3.77 3.38
Advertisement and publicity 7.27 8.98
Communication cost 1.12 1.00
Expected credit loss for trade receivables 6.49 5.04
Trade receivable written off 3.35 2.30
Insurance 0.88 0.51
Subscription and membership fees 0.41 0.90
Donations to political parties 0.10 -
Donations 0.32 -
Bank charges 1.18 1.30
Miscellaneous expenses 0.52 0.31
Total 301.37 256.90
Note A: Payment to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
= For the year ended For the year ended
tiiais 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
0.70 0.60

[Stalutory audit fee
m
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223 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Contingent liabilities
On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which
components of their employee’s compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution
obligations, for Provident Fund contributions under Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the retrospective applicability of

the judgement. However, from the date of order, the Company has complied with the aforesaid Supreme court's judgement, The Company
will evaluate the same and update its position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the subject.

(b) Commitments

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March2022 31 Mareh 2021
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 43.81 54.15

for (net of advances)
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2.24 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The . Company operate post-cmployment defined benefit plan that provides for gratuity. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act,
1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date, The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-half month's
salary for each year of completed services at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed for this purpose and is ged by Life I

Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which i

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

A Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the

s a defined benefit plan is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an

gratuity plan and the amounts recognised In the

Company's fi fal st: as at the bal sheet date:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligations liability 3.62 1.86
Fair value of plan assets 1.32 1.21
Net defined benefit liability 2.30 0.65
Non-current 2.30 0.65
Current = -
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit oblig:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the ¢ pening bal to the closing bal for net defined benefit (assets)/liability and its components.
I) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
. Asat Asat
articslars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 1.86 0.71
Current service cost 1.39 1.02
Interest cost 0.11 0.04
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- Changes in financial assumptions (0.09) 0.01
- experience changes 0.37 0.08
Benelits paid (0.01) -
Defined benefit obligation as at bal sheet date 3.62 1.86
i) Reconciliation to fair value of plan assets
Particulurs Asat As at|
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Plan assets at beginning of the year 1.21 -
Contributions paid into the plan 0.07 117
Interest income 0.10 -
Benefits paid (0.01) -
Return on plan assets 0.04) 0.04
Plan assets at end of the year 132 1.21
Net defined benefit liability 2.30 0.65
C i) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
For the year ended  For the year ended
Pesticalany 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 1.39 1.02
Interest on defined benefit obligation / plan assets (net) 0.01 0.04
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits' 1.40 1.06
C_ii) Re recognised In other comprehensive incame (QCI)
For the year ecnded  For the year ended|
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarinl loss on net defined benefit obligation (0.28) (0.09)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan essets (0.04) 0.04
D Plan assets
) As at As at|
it 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fund managed by Insurer 1.32 1.21




KIMS Hospital Kurnool Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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E Defined benefit abligation

i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
Principal actuarfal assumptions Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.25% 5.80%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%
Morality rate 0.087% to 0.965% 0.087% to 0.965%
Adtrition rate 0% to 35% 0%to31%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars Asat As at]
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1st following year 0.03 0.02
Year 2 to 5 years 2.55 0.99
Year 6 to 9 years L.70 0.96
More than 10 years 107 0.81

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5.60 years (31 March 2021: 6.39 years).

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into

Expected rate of retumn on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the estimated term of

the obligation,

ii) Sensitivity analysis
actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021

R bly possible changes at the reporting date to one of the

Particulars

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rale (1% movement) (0.19) 0.21 0.11) 0.12
Future salary increase (1% movement) 0.21 (0.19) 0.12 0.11)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumption

shown.

F_Defined contribution plan
For the yearended  For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards
i) Provident fund 5.61 5.12
i) Employee state i 2.53 238

(iii)  The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020.
The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have
not yet been issued. The Compeny is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any related impact in the period of the Code becomes effective.
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2.25 Related party disclosures

(a) Parties where control exists or where signifi

cant Influence exists and with whom transactions have taken Pplace during the current year or

previous year

Nature of relationship Name of related parties

Key management persannel (KMP) Dr. Rufig Ahmed Kodumuru-Managing Director
Directors Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala

Mr. Veera Kishore Reddy Sane
Dr. Bollineni Abhinay
Dr. Chebrolu Harini

Relative of Key management personnel (KMP)

Dr. Shruthi Vennela-Daughter of Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala
Dr. P Kiran Kumar-Son in law of Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala
Dr. Junaid Ahmed - Son of Dr.Rafig Ahmed Kodumuru

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Fellow subsidinries Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Holding Company Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
(b) Transactions with related parties
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i Consultancy charges
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 8.72 5.26
Dr. Rafiqg Ahmed Kodumuru 12.36 7.58
Dr. Shruthi Venanela 1.75 1.18
Dr. P Kiran Kumar 435 2,70
Dr. Junaid Ahmed 0.32 0.36
ii.  Purchase of pharmacy items
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.08 0.02
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 3,70 6.57
iii. Sale of pharmacy items
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.12 0.19
Iconkrishi Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.07 0.19
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 4.11 0.83
iv. Repayment of unsecured loan
Dr.A. Venkata Setty - 11.00
Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala - 20.90
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 578.35 76.90
v. Loan received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 502.75 105.00
vi. Commission expense on corporate guarantees
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 10.07 1.73
vii. Interest om unsecured loan
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 20.25 8.88
viii. Corporate guarantee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 590.00 -
ix. Corporate guarantee closed
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 480.00 -
x.  Capltal contribution on account of financial guarantee
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 22.32 -
xi.  Tests and Investigation
0.03 -
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(¢)  The balances recelved from and payable to related parties

Particulars . Avat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

i.  Consultancy charges payable

Dr. Sudhakar Gajjala 0.60 0.69

Dr. Rafiq Ahmed Kodumuru 0.73 0.79

Dr. Shruthi Vennela 0.14 0.09

Dr. P Kiran Kumar 0.37 0.23

Dr. Junaid Ahmed 0.03 0.03
ii.  Unsecured loans payable

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 75.60
iil. Interest accrued

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 1.59
iv.  Trade payables

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited - 0.91

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited 0.02 -
v.  Trade receivable

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 0.91 -
vi. Corporate guarantee received

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 640.00 530.00
vii. Capltal contribution on account of financial guarantee

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 21.57 9.32

Terms and conditions:
All transactions with these related parties are priced on arm’s length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including financial assets and

financial liablilities balances are settled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances are secured.
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2.26 Earnings per share(EPS)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Earnings

Net loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (33.11) (51.79)

Shares

Number shares at the beginning of the year 6,000,000 6,000,000

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,000,000 6,000,000

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 6,000,000 6,000,000

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - used in 6,000,000 6,000,000

calculating diluted EPS

Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value INR [0-Basic (INR) (5.52) (8.63)

Eamings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10-Diluted (INR) (5.52) (8.63)

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares.
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2.27 Segment Information
The Managing Director of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information provided

by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Opernting Decision Maker.

Based on the Company's business model, medical and healthcare services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making decision
on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS
108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclasures to be provided other than those already provided in the Financial Statements. Presently,
the Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India. There are no individual customer contributing more than 10% of Company's total revenue, All
non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets of the Company are located in India.

2.28 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Numbser as allocated afier filing of the Memorandum,
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on
information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with
the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (The MSMED Act') is not expected to be material, The Company has not
received any claim for interest from any supplier.

. As at As at
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal 6.37 0.86
- Interest - =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrucd and remaining unpaid at the end of each accountin g year . .

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a 2 =
deductible expenditure under the MSMED act,

{counanTs
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2.29 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the 'Gearing' ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all
components of equity excluding capital contribution.

The Company's Gearing ratio as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 was as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total borrowings 666.83 603.99
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 19.34 1.53
Net debt 647.49 602.46
Total equity (212.77) (179.43)
Net debt to equity ratio - Gearing ratio -304% -336%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021.




KIMS Hospltal Kurnool Private Limited

CIN: U85110AP2012PTC083865

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.30 Financial instruments : Falr value and risk management
A. Accounting classlfication and fair values
The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities

approximate their carrying amounts as fair value,

As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Value Fair Value Fuir value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 51.79 51.79

Cash and cash equivalents 19.34 19.34

Bank balances other than above 8.70 8.70

Other financial assets 12.51 12.51
Total 92.34 9234 level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Borrowings 666.83 666.83

Trade payables 75.55 75.55

Other financial liabilities 13.86 13.86
Total 756.24 756,24
As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 48.75 48.75

Cash and cash equivalents 1.53 1.53

Other financial assets 10.45 10.45
Total 60.73 60.73 level 3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Borrowings 603.99 603.99

Trade payables 82.27 82.27

Other financial liabilities 10.33 10.33
Total 696.59 -696.59

Note for financlal asscts and financial liabilities at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other financials assets, other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities), short term borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The fair values of non-current botrowings (including current maturities) are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk. - —.
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2.30 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (Continued)

B. Financlal risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

() Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk r B fr k.

The Compuny's risk palicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set approprinte risk limits and controls to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk B policies and sy are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's
uctivities. The Company, through its training and T tandards and Jures, aims to maintain & disciplined and ive control envit in
which all the employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company's Board of Di how 2 monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews
the adeq of risk g fi ork in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Dircetors is sssisted in its oversight tole by the
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk I Is and pracedures, the results of which are reported to the

Board of Directors.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financinl instrument or customer leading to financial loss. The credit risk
arises principally from its operating activitics (primarily trade reccivables) and from its investing aetivities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions and other financial instruments. The carrying amounts of financial asscts represent the maximum eredit risk exposire,

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits to whom credit has been granted after obtaining y approvals for credit. The collection from the trade
receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Ci y cstablishes an all @ for credit loss that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past

and the recent collection trend. The maximum expuosure to eredit risk as at reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR 67.11 as on 31
March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 57.58). The movement in allowance for eredit less in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

As at As at

Allowance for credit losses 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 8.83 3.79
Credit loss added 6.49 5.04
Closing Balance 15.32 8.83
3.35 2.30

Trade receivable write off not routed through the above movement
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade receivables and contract assets. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking estimates,
The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the reccivables are due in the provision matrix. Sct out below is the information about the
credit risk exposure of the Company’s trade reccivables and contract assct using provision matrix:

Gross trade
receivables and
contract assets

For the year ended 31 March 2022 35.88 22,02 16.47 7437
For the year ended 31 March 2021 7.31 49.14 6.41 62.85

0-180 days due past  More than 180 days past

Not past due due date due date

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenuc during the year ended 31 March 2022 and year ended 31 March 2021. Therefore

the customer concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

ts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company g lly tra
international and d ic credit rating ag

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligati iated with its fi ial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another fi ial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that il will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s

reputation,

‘The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2022:

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than § vears Total

Long term borrowings 629.54 - 166.39 463.15 629.54

Short term borrowings 37.29 37.29 - - 37.29

Trade payables 75.55 75.55 - - 15.55

Other financial linbilities 13.86 12.88 0.98 - 13.86

Total 756.24 125.72 167.37 463.15 756.24

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted cc al maturities of significant finencial liabilities as of 31 March 2021:

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Tatal

Long term borrowings 51177 - 409.50 103.17 512.68

Short term borrowings 92.22 92.22 - - 92.22

Trade payables 82.27 82.27 - - 82.27

Other {i inl liahilitics 10.33 8.03 2.30 - 10.33 ——
Tatal ARG &1 18283 411.00 103.17 U57.50 :

The Company has secured loans from bank that contain loan covensnts. A future breach of covenants may require the Company to repay the loan esrlier thar
ndicated in the above table.
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230 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

(iv) Market risk
(=) Interest rate risk exposure
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in markel interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term and short-term borrowings with variable
interest rates,
The exj of the Company's borrowing to i rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2020
Varisble rate borrowings ineluding current maturitics and shart term borrowings 666.83 528.39
(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis
Impact on Equity, net of tax
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR 6.67 528
1% decrease in MCLR (6.67) (5.28)

The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans and working capital loans from banks.

(v) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed o currency risk.
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2.31 Income-tax
a. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences
Tax expenses for the year

0.09 0.01
0.09 0.01

b. Amount guised in other i
For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (expensey/ Net of tax
benefit benefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plans 0.32) 0.09 (0.23) (0.05) 0.01 (0.04)
€. Reconciliation of efective tax rate
Forihe yenr ende or the year en.
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Proflt before tax (33.02) (51.78)
Enncted tax rates 27.82% 27.82%
Tax expense at enacted rates 9.19) (14.41)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) in calcul g taxable income
Deferred tax asset not recognised on various items (net)* 9.27 14.42
0.09 0.01
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets and linbilities
(D) Deferred tux assets and liabilitles ure attributable to the followi £
Asat Asat

Particulars

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax asset*

Provision for doubtful receivabl
Provision for employee benefits
Business loss

Total deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and cquipment (liability)
Total deferred tax Habiliey
Eﬁmed tax liability/asset (net)

3.98 230
1.91 1.04
2103 2421
26.92 27,55
26.92 27.55
26.92 17.55

*Tax loss, unabsorbed depreciation carry-forward and others for which no deferred tax assets were recorded amounting to Rs. 28.89 (31 March 2021: Rs, 20.65)

(i) Movement In temporary differences
Particulars Provision for doubtful Provision for Business loss Property, plant and Total

recelvables employee equipment (liabllity)

henefits

Balance as at | April 2020 0.98 0.65 21.21 (22.84) -
Recognised in profit or loss during 2020-21 132 0.38 3.00 4.71) (0.01)
Recognised in OCT during 2020-21 - 0.01 - - 0.01
Balance as at 31 March 2021 230 1.04 24.21 (27.55) -
Recognised in profit or loss during 2021-22 1.68 0.78 (3.18) 0.63 (0.09)
Rocognised in OCT during 2021-22 - 0.09 - - 0.09
Bal as at 31 March 2022 3.98 1.91 21.03 (26.92) -
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2.32 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended  For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Income from hospital services 385.82 362.64

Income from pharmacy 260.24 157.95

Total revenue from contracts with customers 646.06 520.59

India 646.06 520.59

Outside India - -

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 385.82 362.64

Goods transferred at a point of time 260.24 157.95

Total revenue from contracts with customers 646.06 520.59

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 707.28 557.67

Less: Discounts and disallowances (61.22) (37.08)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 646.06 520.59

Contract balances

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 51.79 48.75

Contract assets 7.26 5.27

Contract liabilities 5.11 2.43

Contract liabilities: During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 2.43 from advance received from
patients outstanding as on 31 March 2021, During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has recognised revenue of Rs.3.02 from

advance received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2020.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs. 5.27 of contract assets as at 31 March 2021 to
trade receivables on completion of performance obligation, During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has transferred Rs. 2.11
of contract assets as at 31 March 2020 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.

2.33 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The
Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

2.34 Lease

Operating leases in the capacity of lessee

The Company has residential premises under cancellable operating leases. The Company intends to renew such lease in the normal course of
business. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating lease amounted to Rs. 4.65 ( previous year 31 March 2021 Rs. 4.75). The same are

grouped under other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. -
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235 Ratio Annlysis and its el

Particulars Numerator Denomlinator Asat Asat % change*

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabities 0.78 038 103.35%
h) Debt-Equity ratio Total Debts™" Shareholder’s Equity (3.75) (3.62) 3.57%
) Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debts service® Debt service™ 0.14 0.48 -71.61%
d) Inventory Tumover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 10.86 10.99 -1.22%
) Trade Receivable tumover Ratio Net Credit Sales'® Average Trade Receivables 12.85 14.88 -13.60%
n Trade Payable tumover Ratio Net credit Purchases® Average Trade Payables 5.73 5.34 7.33%
) Net Capital turnover ratio Net Sales®® Working capital® (20.84) (4.40) 373.15%
h) Retum on Equity Ratio Net profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s equity 19.20% 36.73% 47.72%
)] Net Profit ratio Net profit Net Sales'® -5.12% -9.95% AR49%
i) Return on Capital employed Eamings before interest and taxes Capital Employed®™ 5.71% 141% 305.35%
k) Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income) Time weighted average i 6.10% 6.10% 0.00%

) Debt includes Lease Lisbilities

® Net profit after laxes + Non-Operaling expenses

© Interest and lease payments + Principal Repayments

® Gross credit sales - sales retum

@ Gross credit purchases - purchase returns + other expenses
© Total sales - sales return

@ Current assets - Current liabilities

® Tangible Net Worth + Total Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

* Changes in the ratios is due to change in the business operations during the year.
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236 Other Statutory Information

(i)

(i)
(i)
(iv)
v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company do not have any ions with panies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtua| C y during the fi ial year.

The Company have not ad i or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mantier whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(%)

The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

2.37 Significant events after the reporting period

There were no significent adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.
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